K-399

PARSONS-JOINER HOUSE
Chestertown, Maryland
(ca 1875)

The Parsons-Joiner House is an example of the side-hall plan
houses sometimes constructed on farms in the 1870's and 1880's. The
two and a half story, frame structure has mill-work details that
were common, relatively inexpensive, and easily available through
builders' catalogs after the Civil War. The house and its out-
buildings are illustrative of the surge of building that occurred

on the Upper Shore in the last three decades of the nineteenth

century.
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The Parsons-Joiner House is located on the northeast side of Flatland Road. It is
surrounded by open fields with a view of two other historic buildings (K-400 and K-403.)
The house faces southwest.

The house is a side-hall plan, 2% story frame structure with a lower 2% story
rear ell. A front porch extends across its three-bay front and another porch is
located on the south side of the ell. The main house and ell are both 2 bays
(one room) deep.

The ridge of the gable roof is paralled to the front of the building. The roof is
edged with sawn wooden ornament in a open scallop design identical to that at the
Victorian Cottage (K-400) nearby. Two gable dormers with round headed upper sash
protrude from the front roof slope. The front porch is quite decorative with a
balustrade made of turned wooden balusters. The one-story side porch has chamfered
wooden posts and large, elaborate sawn wooden brackets .

Windows have 2 over 2 sash in the front part of the house with Six over six sash
used in the rear ell. The main entry door, located in the south bay of the front,
has a 4-1light transom and 3-light side lights. The transom bar is decorated with
applied sawn wooden decoration; sidelight panels and the entry door have bolection
moldings. The entire building is covered with aluminum siding.

The rooms in the rear ell of the building have experienced extensive remolding.
Those in the front portion of the building are largely unchanged although the
partition wall between the stair and parlour has been removed and the mantle in the
parlour replaced with a brick one.

Trim around windows and doors is the typical fillet-Grecian ogee and bevel-fascia-

bead so commonly used in the late Victorian period. Doors have four panels and
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Parsons-Joiner House is an example of the side-hall plan houses sometimes

constructed on farms in the 1870's and 1880's.

This building has mill-work details

that were common, relatively inexpensive, and easily available through builders

catalogs after the Civil War.

The structure is illustrative of the surge of

building that occurred on the Upper Shore in the last three decades of the nineteenth

century.

This house was constructed by Thomas C. Parsons, a farmer, and occupied by him

for many years.
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(Description#7 cont'd) K-399 2.

flattish applied moldings and the stair has a walnut newel and handrail,
turned ocak balusters, and a beaded board spandrel. The original

random, medium width yellow pine floors have, in some rooms, been
replaced with narrow oak boarding.

Some Victorian period barns remain behind the house and the
owners have photographs of another building that was demolished several
years ago. This 1% story structure was frame and rested on a high
stone foundation. The second story was reached by an enclosed corner
stair. The outbuilding had a gable roof and horizontal siding.

Two story outbuildings are very uncommon and the original use of this
one is unknown.
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Chain of Title

PARSONS-JOINER HOUSE
(K-399)

Transaction

TO: W. Paul & Elizabeth C. Joiner
FROM: George F. & Susanna W. Sparks
DATE: March 15, 1954

TO: George F. & Susanna W. Sparks
FROM: Emory V. Hogans
DATE: September 11, 1943

TO: Emory V. Hogans
FROM: Herbert E. Perkins, Assignee
DATE: May 22, 1942

TO: Herbert E. Perkins
FROM: Charles B. & Mary W. Nicholson
DATE: November 13, 1937 (mortgage)

TO: Charles B. Nicholson
FROM: Heirs of Robert G. Nicholson
DATE: November 20, 1933

Robert G. Nicholson died intestate in
Oct. 29, 1932 and left this property to his
children. They deeded it to their brother; four
years later he lost it in the mortgage fore-
closure recorded in the previous deed.

TO: Robert G. Nicholson
FROM: Thomas A. Parsons
DATE: March 20, 1916

(Excepting 28/100 land of the Flatland
School House) names of the property were "Town's
Relief, Harbor,' or '""Balton's Meadows."



Chain of Title, K-399

Land Records of
Kent County
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Transaction

TO: Thomas A. Parsons
FROM: Hope H. & Margaret W. Barroll
DATE: September 21, 1895

T.A. Parsons was executor of the will
of Thomas C. Parsons. The farm where Thomas
C. Parsons lived for many years before his death
and which he purchased from Joseph Walraven et al
in several deeds. In SGF 3/541 the property is
transferred to Barroll and here to Parsons.

TO: Thomas C. Parsons
FROM: Joseph Walraven
DATE: January 5, 1864
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